
 

 

 AGENDA – QUARTERLY MEETING of the NEBRASKA BRAND COMMITTEE  

 

Tuesday June 15, 2021 

9:00 a.m.  CST 

Location of Meeting 

Mid -Plains Community College 

715 East US -20  

Valentine, NE 69201 

 

 

 

 

All agenda items are for discussion and action will be taken as deemed appropriate.  The 

Committee reserves the right to go into closed session in accordance with                    

Neb.Rev.Stat. §84-1410. 

      

Call to Order 

 

• Pursuant to Neb.Rev.Stat. §84-1412(8) a current copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings 

Act is posted in the meeting room at a location accessible to members of the public. 

 

• Roll Call 

 

• Adoption of Agenda 

 

• Current Business 

 

1. Introduction of Attendees 

 

2. Approval of Minutes  

a. March 16, 2021 Regular Meeting  

b. June 4, 2021 Special Meeting  

 

3. Consideration and Acceptance of Financial Statements 

a. Comp-Time Report 

b. Cash Payment Deposit Account 

 

4. Legislative Updates 

 

5. Review and approval of the Revised South Dakota Reciprocal Agreement  

 

6. Staff Updates and Ratification of Personnel changes 

 

7. Estray Reports 

 



8. Strategic Plan Review 

 

9. Fee Schedule Review and Discussion 

 

10. Review and Discussion of Committee Meeting Notice Postings and Advertisements  

 

11. Executive Session: To Receive Legal Advice Related to Potential or Anticipated 

Litigation, Legislative, Personnel matters and Review of Special Projects  

 

12. Technology Report - IT Coordinator Danna Schwenk 

 

13. Investigators Reports 

a. Tom Hughson 

b. C J Fell 

c. Brent Deibler 

 

14. Registered Feedlot Audit Updates. 

 

15. District Supervisors Reports 

a. Kortnie Shaffer 

b. Cody Waite 

c. Shawn Hanks 

d. Kayla Jesse 

 

16. Chief Investigators Report – Dave Horton  

 

17. Executive Directors Report – John Widdowson  

 

18. Public Comment 

 

19. Adjournment    

  

    

 

    

 

 

     

 

 
4837-9349-3815, v.  1 

 



 

 
 

NEBRASKA BRAND COMMITTEE MEETING 
 Tuesday June 15, 2021 
9:00 a.m. Central Time 

Mid-Plains Community College 
715 East US-20 

Valentine, NE 69201 
 

 
Roll call of members in attendance. 
 
In compliance with the provision of the Open Meetings Act, Public notice of this June 15, 2021 
meeting was posted in the headquarters office in Alliance, NE on May 28, 2021 at 12:00 p.m. 
MST. Certification of Public Notice will be provided as part of the record of this meeting.  
 
Notice of this June 15, 2021 meeting was posted in the headquarters office in Alliance, NE and 
on the Nebraska Brand Committee’s website. 
 
In compliance with the Open Meetings Act, an agenda and other related material were made 
available for public inspection in the headquarters office prior to the meeting.  Agenda and 
related items are available for public use and review. An agenda was made available on June 4, 
2021 at 12:00 p.m. MST.  
 
The final meeting agenda was emailed to the Committee members on June 11, 2021.  
 
A copy of the Open Meetings Act is available to the public at the headquarters office of the 
Nebraska Brand Committee Alliance, NE. 
 
This meeting is not being recorded.   























































 

 

 MINUTES – SPECIAL MEETING of the NEBRASKA BRAND COMMITTEE  

 

Friday, June 4, 2021 

1:30 p.m. Central Time / 12:30 p.m. Mountain Time 

Via Telecommunications 

 

 

 

All agenda items are for discussion and action will be taken as deemed appropriate.  The 

Committee reserves the right to go into closed session in accordance with                    

Neb.Rev.Stat. §84-1410. 

      

  Call to Order 

 Adam Sawyer called the meeting to order at 1:33pm 

  

• Pursuant to Neb.Rev.Stat. §84-1412(8) a current copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings 

Act is posted in the meeting room at the Nebraska Brand Committee headquarters at a 

location accessible to members of the public. 

 

• Roll Call 

Adam Sawyer- present 

Terry Cone- Present 

Chris Gentry- Present 

Tanya Storer- Present 

 

 

• Adoption of Agenda 

Chris Gentry moved to adopt the agenda as presented 

Terry Cone seconded the motion 

No discussion 

Adam Sawyer yes 

Terry Cone yes 

Chris Gentry yes 

Tanya Storer yes 

Motion passed 

 

• Current Business 

 

1. Introduction of Attendees. 

Adam Sawyer         Chairman 

Terry Cone             Committee Member 

Chris Gentry           Committee Member 

Tanya Storer           Committee Member 

John Widdowson    Director 

Dave Horton           Chief Investigator 



Cody Waite             Area Supervisor 

Dean Anderson       Business Operations Manager 

Mark Fahleson    Legal counsel 

 

 

2. Review and discussion of Cash Policy.  

Director Widdowson discussed the new plan for cash policy, by depositing directly 

into the State’s accounts, in place of the current policy. 

Terry Cone moved to strike the fee collection policy from the handbook. 

Adam Sawyer seconded the motion. 

No discussion 

Adam Sawyer yes 

Terry Cone yes 

Chris Gentry yes 

Tanya Storer yes 

Motion passed 

 

3. Legislative Update Regarding LB 572 

Director Widdowson gave an update on the passing of LB 572 and the steps being 

taken to implement and comply with this legislation. 

No action taken 

 

4. Review and Discussion of Bi-Annual Budget. 

Director Widdowson gave an update on the status of our current budget. 

No action taken 

 

5.  Consideration of Action Regarding Expenditure of Funds for  

     Wages/Benefits/Personal Services.  

Director Widdowson discussed foregone cost of living adjustments for past 2 

years to assist the Brand Committee in managing its budget, the need to attract 

and retain quality personnel, changes that have led to the Committee being under 

budget for personal services limitation (PSL) and asked for authorization to use a 

portion of unused budget authority to address the sacrifices made by current 

employees in the interest of the Committee.  

Discussion occurred regarding the amount of foregone cost of living adjustments 

and remaining budget authority. 

 

Chris Gentry moved to authorize a discretionary award to current employees in 

lieu of foregone cost of living adjustments for current employees not on 

probationary or disciplinary status in the gross total amount not to exceed 

$150,000.00. 

Tanya Storer seconded the motion 

Adam Sawyer yes 

Terry Cone yes 

Chris Gentry yes 

Tanya Storer yes 



Motion passed 

 

• Adjournment 

Chris Gentry moved to adjourn the meeting  

Terry Cone seconded the motion 

 No discussion 

Adam Sawyer yes 

Terry Cone yes 

Chris Gentry yes 

Tanya Storer yes 

Motion passed. 

Meeting adjourned at 2:35 pm 

 
 

 



Nebraska Brand Committee
March 2021
Financial Statements in U.S. Dollars

FY 2019-2020 Appropriation Amount
Current PSL Appropriation $3,211,319.08

Curernt Other Operating Appropriation $2,694,248.09
$5,905,567.17

Revenue
470000- Revenue Sales & Charges $520,997.61
480000- Miscellaneous Revenue $9,890.85
    Net Sales $530,888.46

Expenses
510000 PSL $236,254.01
Benefits/FICA $79,252.79
520000 Other Operating $108,852.25
    Total Expenses $424,359.05

    Net Operating Income $106,529.41

   Agency Net Income (Loss) $106,529.41

Cash On Hand
Remaing Budgeted Amount PSL $892,168.28
Remaing Budgeted Amount Other Operating $914,473.68
Spending Authority Remaining $1,806,641.96

Fund Equity Balance- No Spending Authority $2,972,018.70

Income Statement



Nebraska Brand Committee
April 2021
Financial Statements in U.S. Dollars

FY 2019-2020 Appropriation Amount
Current PSL Appropriation $3,211,319.08

Curernt Other Operating Appropriation $2,694,248.09
$5,905,567.17

Revenue
470000- Revenue Sales & Charges $417,104.65
480000- Miscellaneous Revenue $7,165.43
    Net Sales $424,270.08

Expenses
510000 PSL $238,176.62
Benefits/FICA $79,745.86
520000 Other Operating $104,150.00
    Total Expenses $422,072.48

    Net Operating Income $2,197.60

   Agency Net Income (Loss) $2,197.60

Cash On Hand
Remaing Budgeted Amount PSL $653,991.66
Remaing Budgeted Amount Other Operating $662,371.70
Spending Authority Remaining $1,316,363.36

Fund Equity Balance- No Spending Authority $2,972,018.70

Income Statement



Nebraska Brand Committee
May 2021
Financial Statements in U.S. Dollars

FY 2019-2020 Appropriation Amount
Current PSL Appropriation $3,211,319.08

Curernt Other Operating Appropriation $2,694,248.09
$5,905,567.17

Revenue
470000- Revenue Sales & Charges $539,459.99
480000- Miscellaneous Revenue $9,050.29
    Net Sales $548,510.28

Expenses
510000 PSL $242,247.77
Benefits/FICA $82,094.28
520000 Other Operating $100,693.55
    Total Expenses $425,035.60

    Net Operating Income $123,474.68

   Agency Net Income (Loss) $123,474.68

Cash On Hand
Remaing Budgeted Amount PSL $411,743.89
Remaing Budgeted Amount Other Operating $479,583.87
Spending Authority Remaining $891,327.76

Fund Equity Balance- No Spending Authority $2,972,018.70

Income Statement





















































Fiscal Year Fund Equity Balance

2002‐2003 1,004,614.24$               

2003‐2004 653,831.99$                  

2004‐2005 561,432.29$                  

2005‐2006 669,716.26$                  

2006‐2007 652,138.12$                  

2007‐2008 569,608.79$                  

2008‐2009 715,819.41$                  

2009‐2010 641,574.93$                  

2010‐2011 710,877.47$                  

2011‐2012 704,990.95$                  

2012‐2013 808,906.86$                  

2013‐2014 1,156,069.38$               

2014‐2015 1,057,617.38$               

2015‐2016 954,249.17$                  

2016‐2017 1,017,715.30$               

2017‐2018 1,915,311.88$               

2018‐2019 2,382,482.24$               

2019‐2020 2,238,985.78$               

2020‐2021 2,972,018.70$               



RECIPROCAL AGREEMENT FOR LIVESTOCK OWNERSHIP INSPECTION 

THIS AGREEMENT- made and entered into by and between the Nebraska Brand Committee, 411 Niobrara 

Ave., Alliance, Nebraska, and the South Dakota State Brand Board, 209 West Dakota Avenue, Pierre, 

South Dakota. 

The Nebraska Brand Committee hereby designates the following livestock markets and slaughter plants in 

South Dakota as Inspection Points for Nebraska cattle: 

AUCTION MARKETS: 

Burke Livestock Auction Burke. South Dakota 

Gregory Livestock Auction Co. Gregory, South Dakota 

Martin Auction Company Martin, South Dakota 

Winner Livestock Auction 

LOCKER PLANTS: 

Winner, South Dakota 

Fuch's Lockers Martin, South Dakota 

Winner Locker Winner. South Dakota 

 

The South Dakota State Brand Board agrees to inspect all cattle originating from the Nebraska Brand 

Inspection Area consigned to the markets and slaughter plants listed herein and charged and collect the 

inspection fee per head as set by the South Brand Board State Brand Board. The fees shall be retained by 

the South Dakota State Brand Board. 

 

The South Dakota State Brand Board agrees to send the sale proceeds and other related documents on any 

cattle consigned into the markets or slaughter as strays to the Nebraska Brand Committee. The South 

Dakota Brand Inspector will contact the Chief Brand Inspector, Alliance, Nebraska, of any cattle 

consignments to which ownership is. questioned and: handles such consignments as directed. 

 

The South Dakota State Brand Board agrees to send a complete report showing the tally for each shipper: 

along with bills of sale or other evidence of ownership, to the Nebraska Brand Committee at the end of 

each month. 

 

The South Dakota State Brand Board hereby designates the following livestock markets and slaughter 

plants in Nebraska as Inspection Points for South Dakota origin cattle:  

 

AUCTION MARKETS: 

Atkinson Livestock Auction   Atkinson, Nebraska    

Bassett Livestock Auction    Bassett, Nebraska  

  Crawford Livestock     Crawford, Nebraska 

  Creighton Livestock Auction    Creighton, Nebraska 



Gordon Livestock Auction    Gordon, Nebraska 

Shamrock Livestock Market LLC   O’Neill, Nebraska 

 Sheridan Livestock Commission Company  Rushville, Nebraska  

Valentine Livestock Auction -Company   Valentine, Nebraska 

 

LOCKER PLANTS 

CR Packing Company Gordon, Nebraska 

Spencer Locker Spencer, Nebraska 

Valentine Locker Valentine, Nebraska 

Jansen Custom Cut Rushville Nebraska 

Open Range Pack                                                            Gordon, Nebraska 

 

The Nebraska Brand Committee agrees to inspect all cattle originating from within the South Dakota 

Brand Inspection Area, consigned to the markets and slaughter plants listed herein, and to charge and 

collect the inspection fee as set by the Nebraska Brand Committee. The fees collected shall be retained by 

the Nebraska Brand Committee. 

 

The Nebraska Brand Committee agrees to hold the proceeds from sale of any South Dakota cattle arriving 

at the Inspection Points listed above without a Shipper's Permit. They also agree to hold the proceeds from 

the sale of South Dakota cattle originating from the brand inspection area until proof of ownership is 

established by the seller. These proceeds may be held for-up to 60 days at the market. If ownership to the 

cattle cannot be established within this period of time, the net proceeds from the sale, along with all paper 

work, stray remittance report, tally, sales sheet, etc., will be sent to the Chief Brand Inspector, South 

Dakota State Brand Board. 

 

The Nebraska Brand Inspector will contact the South Dakota State Brand Board Chief Brand Inspector, of 

any cattle consignments to which ownership is questioned and handle such consignments as directed. 

 

Both parties agree to supply each other at no cost, with current Electronic Brand Books and additions 

thereto, as well as other forms deemed necessary to perform and report livestock inspection within these 

states. 

Each party specifically reserves any claims it may have to sovereign immunity as a defense to any action 

arising in conjunction with this agreement and nothing herein shall be as a waiver of immunity.               

This agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior 

negotiations, representations and agreements whether written or oral. 

This agreement shall become effective July 1, 2021 for a period-of one year- The agreement will be 

automatically renewed for additional periods absent notice of termination, This agreement will terminate 

upon 60 days written notice by any party, to the other parties. agreement may be amended upon mutual 

agreement of the parties, in writing. 



This Agreement is executed in duplicate by the parties as indicated below: 

__________________________________________  _______________________________ 

Chairman       Date 

Nebraska Brand Committee 

 

 

__________________________________________  _______________________________ 

President       Date 

South Dakota State Brand Board 
 

 



1

Schwenk, Danna

Subject: FW: South Dakota Agreement

 
From: Dethlefsen, Joshua <joshua.dethlefsen@nebraska.gov> 
Sent: Friday, June 11, 2021 4:25:08 PM 
To: Widdowson, John <John.Widdowson@nebraska.gov> 
Cc: Lavene, Justin <Justin.Lavene@nebraska.gov> 
Subject: South Dakota Agreement  
  
John, 
  
You had asked whether the Brand Committee could permissibly enter into a reciprocal inspection agreement with the 
state of South Dakota. We believe the Committee can enter into such an agreement, so long as it does not exceed its 
statutory authority. If you have questions about this, please let me know. 
  
Joshua E. Dethlefsen 
Assistant Attorney General 
Agriculture, Environment, & Natural Resources Bureau 
Nebraska Attorney General’s Office 
2115 State Capitol 
Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-8920 
  
P: 402.471.1813 
F: 402.471.3297 
joshua.dethlefsen@nebraska.gov 
  
This email transmission and any attachments to it contain information from the Nebraska Department of Justice that is 
confidential and/or privileged. The information is intended to be solely for the use of the individual or entity named above. If 
you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution, redistribution, or use of the contents if this 
information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please contact me immediately by phone or by return 
email and immediately delete the contents of this message. Thank you. 
  
  
  



 

 

NEBRASKA BRAND COMMITTEE 
PERSONNEL CHANGES 

 
FULL TIME EMPLOYEES 

                   Casey Connell North Platte/Arnold 4/1/2021 

Dean Rice Mullen- Moved from Part time to 
Full Time 

 4/1/2021 

Chastidy Krueger Moved from Thedford to 
Ainsworth to fill 

4/1/2021 

William Bennett Bridgeport-  5/3/2021 

Timothy Mendick Kearney 6/1/2021 

Cody Luhn Kearney 6/1/2021 

Judy Marshall Took Inspector In-charge Position 
Scottsbluff 

6/1/2021 

McKenzie Kelly Took Inspector In-Charge Position 
Kearney 

7/1/2021 

Shea Conner Ogallala Resigned 6/18/2021 

Rebekah Kraeger Lexington Resigned 5/13/2021 

 
 

INTERMITTENT INSPECTORS 
Jeremy Kennedy 

 
Crawford/Chadron Starts 6/21/2021 

   

   
 

   

 
 

OPEN POSITIONS 
Full Time Inspector Ogallala Replaces Shea Conner 

Full Time Inspector Scottsbluff Replaces Judy Marshall’s Position 

Full Time Inspector Lexington Replaces Rebekah Kraeger 

 
 

  

Intermittent Inspector Valentine Replaces Gary Reiser 
 

 



DATE ADMIN/STAFF INVESTIGATORS
AREA 

SUPERVISORS

FULL TIME 

INSPECTORS

INTERMITTANT 

INSPECTORS
Total Staff

Jan-21 8 3 4 41 24 80

Feb-21 8 3 4 40 24 79

Mar-21 8 3 4 40 24 79

Apr-21 8 3 4 41 24 80

May-21 8 3 4 41 24 80

Jun-21

Jul-21

Aug-21

Sep-21

Oct-21

Nov-21

Dec-21

Employee Count By Month



NEBRASKA BRAND COMMITTEE 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of the Nebraska Brand Committee is to provide individual herd identification 

through brand recording; ownership protection through brand inspection at markets, during 

private treaty sales, and when leaving the state and / or brand inspection area; and 

investigation of cases which involve fraud in marketing of cattle and theft of livestock.  

MISSION 

To be the leader in animal ownership and movement verification for livestock producers. 

VISION 

By cultivating people, leadership and new technology the Nebraska Brand Committee will be the 

leader in inspection, recording and policing for the livestock industry.  

Nebraska Brand Committee will pursue our vision by: 

 Implementation and completion of electronic reporting system. 

 Executing new methodologies for brand inspection to include Electronic Identification. 

 Providing continuing education for stakeholders with enhanced communication. 

 Enhancing the positive culture within the agency. 

 Creating additional value and services to all segments of our producers.  

 Cultivating our relationship with other agencies and industry partners.  

 

PAST: WHERE WE HAVE BEEN 

The 1941 Legislature created the Nebraska Brand Committee, it is a totally self‐supported cash fund 

agency, and its mission is accomplished under the authority of Nebraska Livestock Brand Act. 

The Nebraska Brand Committee is a non‐code agency administrated by 5 Committee Members that are 

appointed by the governor, employees are divided between administrative personnel, investigators and 

field personnel.  

PRESENT: WHERE WE ARE NOW 

 The Nebraska Brand Committee is creating efficiencies with technology by implementing the 

electronic brand reporting system, electronic brand book, client portal, electronic fee collection 



and processing. Also implementing other labor saving tasks and eliminating repetitive functions 

required by a paper based system.     

FUTURE: WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

The desire of the Nebraska Brand Committee is to move into the future beside and serving the Livestock 
Industry, using the most current technologies available. Exploring new ideas and methodologies for 
brand inspection that would include the ability to utilize electronic animal identifiers. 
 
THE GOALS SET BY THE NEBRASKA BRAND COMMITTEE TO ACCOMPLISH OUR VISION 
 

1. Continue to develop and build our electronic reporting system. 
2. Analyze, monitor and manage agency income and expenditures.  
3. Implement a system that allows the Nebraska Brand Committee to utilize Electronic Identifiers 

as evidence of ownership.  
4. Reduce costs of per head inspections.  
5. Creating educational strategies for specific stakeholder groups.   

 
        
 NEBRASKA BRAND COMMITTEE WILL MEASURE SUCCESS WITH KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS OF: 
    

� Retention of employees at 95% annually.  

� Completion of remaining milestones in set project plan.  

� Rollout and training of electronic time keeping program by 3rd quarter 2019‐2020. 

� Provide onsite training and demonstration opportunity for legislative leaders.  

� Create close working relationships with the Department of Agriculture for Nebraska Traceability 
Group. 

� To see a reduction of at least 2.5% per month in mileage reimbursement until it hits the target 
of a 15% overall annual reduction.  

� To realize a decrease of 2% per month reduction in comp‐time pay out and accrual until the 
target of a 22.5% reduction per annum is reached.                                                                  

� Finalization of Best Evidence and Enrollment Requirements to implement Electronic Animal 
Identifier (EID) brand inspection system.   

� Initial Implementation of Electronic Animal Identifier repository.  

� Implementation of non‐change of ownership E‐Inspections.  

� Implementation of change of ownership E‐Inspection.  

� Development and implementation of Electronic Animal Identifier (EID) Tracking and Information 
Exchange with Nebraska Department of Agriculture and USDA.  

� Development and implementation of interface to banking systems for lien lookups and 
collateralization of cattle.  

� Initiate the value add components for producer opt in section on marketing opportunities.   

� Completion of EID E‐Inspection, Financial Transactions and Lien perfection and collateralization 
of cattle.  

    
 

    



Revised July 1, 2020 

 

Fee Schedule 

Brand Recording Fees 

New Brand Application - $100.00 (Left & Right sides require two seperate applications 
with seperate checks of $100.00 each) 

 Add location - $15.00 per location (same side only) 
 Add freeze - $25.00 per side 

Brand Transfer - $40.00 

Brand Renewal - $50.00 (Every four years) 

Brand Lease - $1.00 (Only good until renewal date) 

Brand Ownership Certificate - $1.00 per copy 

Brand Research - $20.00 per hour & $1.00 per copy 

  

Brand Inspection Fees 

Inspection Fee - $1.00 per head 

Surcharge - $20.00 per stop (Effective July 1, 2020) 

Local Inspection Duplicate - $6.00 research + $1.00 per copy 

Sale Ring Clearance Duplicate - $6.00 research + $1.00 per copy 

Local Inspection Research - $20.00 per hour + $1.00 per copy 

Grazing Permits - $15.00 per year (Renewed every year) 

  

Registered Feedlots 

Registered Feedlot Permit - $1000.00 for each 1,000 head plus $250.00 for each 
increment of 250 head above the 1,000 head total of the one-time capacity of lot(s) to 
be registered. 

  

Out of State Branding Permits - $50.00 

The requested brand will have to be verified before any permit is issued by a brand 
inspector. 
 



 

 

MEETING OF THE 
NEBRASKA BRAND COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 
9:00 a.m. Central Time /10:00 a.m. Mountain Time 

 
Mid‐Plains Community College 

715 East US‐20 
Valentine, NE 69201 

 
Or Via telecommunications 

Contact details to be provided 
 
In compliance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act, public notice of this June 15, 2021, 
meeting was posted on the exterior door of the headquarters office in Alliance, NE on June 1, 
2021, and on the Nebraska Brand Committee website on June 2, 2021. Certification of Public 
Notice will be provided as part of the record of this meeting.  
 
In compliance with the Open Meetings Act, an agenda and other related material were made 
available  for public  inspection  in  the headquarters office prior  to  the meeting.   Agenda  and 
related items are available for public use and review. In addition, in compliance with the Open 
Meetings Act reasonable arrangements have been made to accommodate the public's right to 
attend  at  a  physical  site  and  participate  as  provided  in  the  Open Meetings  Act,  including 
reasonable seating, with the designated physical site being the Mid‐Plains Community College in 
Valentine, NE. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require reasonable 
accommodations to attend, please call (308) 763‐2930 to coordinate necessary arrangements.  
 
A copy of the Open Meetings Act is available to the public at the headquarters office of the 
Nebraska Brand Committee Alliance, NE. 
 
Pursuant to the Open Meetings Act this meeting will be recorded.  

 



Technology Report – June 2021 

Danna Schwenk 

Staff Technology Updates 

• Original 5 cellular Ipads are in use and going mostly well.  There are occasional challenges with 

good enough signal when trying to do updates that they still need to connect to wifi for big 

updates. 

• The remaining 70 ipads have been ordered and should have been delivered on Monday 14th. 

• Sim cards for ipads have been ordered last week via OCIO and will be about 1-2 weeks out.  

• Estimate that we will be configuring and distributing the first ipads prior to July 1. 

• Are trialing out new Chromebooks for the sale barn laptops.  This would be a $600 per device 

cost saving vs ordering a regular OCIO laptop when replacements are needed! 

• May 24th the Supervisor meeting was held at my place where we spent about 6 hours working 

through additional training, update demos, priority meetings, and finalizing 6 month test 

questions and scenarios. 

Nebraska Interactive 

• The late spring Sprint is completed with additional Enhancement package III that includes 

legislative requirement changes, some enhancements and bug fixes included.  Testing is 

currently being done and should be completed the end of the month. 

• More upgrades to OnTheGo with the transition of the OTGPay being moved into the OnTheGo.  

We have completed the development, which is in full testing with the beta team of Supervisors 

and myself.  This takes extensive testing to ensure payments will work as intended. 

• With the removal of the cash to invoice account requirements, the next development will start 

on the Client Portal.  I am completing the specifications, wireframes and mockups for this. 

• NIC has stopped keeping customer backlogs and I am researching best means to manage our 

backlog of enhancement requests. 

• Brought Brent up to speed with the E-Inspection and CattlePass expectations. Introduction 

meeting with NIC and CP on Monday night. 

• Prioritization meetings occurred May 24 for designation of projects and enhancements in order. 

o Added Prioritized Projects: 

▪ Client Portal 

▪ Dairy Certificates 

▪ E-Inspection 

o Remaining Original Milestones for Development: 

▪ Cutbacks 

▪ Estray reporting 

▪ Violations 

▪ Production Sale 

 

 



SigmaSolve 

• Time keeper update was delivered.  It was a massive disappointment that was sent back to 

Sigma.  They have yet to get back to me with a next step forward.  We essentially have been 

dismissed and need to consider moving this to different developer. 

• Started researching Apple Devs that could take on a private project for some fixes and reports. 

Traceability 

• Windmill Feeders had received 6000 high frequency tags from a previous NDA project from over 

a year ago and have sent the tags back to NDA as they will not be using them. Steve Hoefer 

asked for my help in deciding where to distribute these tags. We are working on a game plan. 

• North Platte Sale Barn installed both High Frequency and Low Frequency readers end of March 

but are not currently collecting any data or using it as far as I know. 

Automated Electronic Testing 

• We selected Class Marker program at $200 per year for 4800 tests. 

• The new testing program has been used on all the new hire testing and has worked 

exceptionally well. 

• The 6 month tests are available and the North Supervisor has used them on all her annual 

review to much success and approval from staff.  They will be used for the 6 month employee 

tests once annual reviews are completed. 

E-Inspection/CattlePass 

• Rob and I have been completing final specifications for the local chain database structure 

• Introduction of NI to CattlePass team this week 

• Justin has been actively building the CattlePass database  and user interface (UIX) web app and 

preparing for our first tests of individual data to be received. 

• Monday the 7th the first 20 head of cattle were received into the database via blue tooth tags 

and successfully launched the first blockchain transactions  

• John and I are forming the E-Inspection Advisory Team and will have selections done very soon 

with the first meeting shortly there after. 

Electronic Support Ticketing System 

• We selected FreshDesk as the Support teams CSM data system  Being on a small scale we are 

receiving this for free for the time being 

• Freshdesk allows for all support tickets to be lodged and assigned to different personnel to 

handle.  It also allows for me to manage outstanding/pending tickers that were being forgotten 

as we got further from solving them 

• This program allows for KnowledgeDesk items so other staff can research their solutions in our 

library or for instruction for Supervisors how to handle commen issues 

• Eventually this will also allow for chat bots where  e-inspection customers will be able to talk 

instantly with help desk support when issues arise with new electronic inspection transactions. 

This function will need an updated license when the time is right to switch up. 



1 
 

Area II Quarterly Report 

Criminal Investigator Thomas Hughson 

June 15, 2021 

Open Investigations: 

• Sheridan County – Bankruptcy/Brand violations/theft 

• Sioux County – Bankruptcy/theft 

• Banner County - Theft 

• Dawes County – Ownership disagreement 

• Sioux County – Grazing allotment disagreement 

• Sheridan County – Assisting a Federal investigation 

Court Cases: 

• One in court pending 

Violations: 

• Worked violation inspections. Colorado, South Dakota & Wyoming. 

• Worked 5 violation resulting from a sale without inspection.  

• Worked with Colorado cattle shipped without inspection. 

• Worked with South Dakota cattle shipped without inspection 

• Worked with the Department of Agriculture on a health violation. 

• Working numerous violations in Garden County. 

 

Estray Cases: 

• Several pending 

Truck Checks: 4 checks 

• 5/5/21 Broadwater 



2 
 

• 5/6/21 Sidney 

• 6/1/21 Hay Springs 

• 6/2/21 Valentine 

 

Grazing Permits: 

• Have reviewed, approved or rejected all Area II grazing permits that have 

been received to date. The inflow has slowed but continues. 

Continuing Education: 

• None this quarter 

Employee interaction: 

•  I have relabeled this category as I no longer play a role in the actual 

supervision of employees. I do have a lot of interaction with the 

inspection and supervision staff working on issues and giving advice/ my 

opinion. 

Producers Issues: There has been an increase in Bankruptcy reports and banking 

issues recently that have required additional time for research, investigation 

and inventory inspections. 

• Grazing Permits 

• Inspection requirements 

• Health Requirements 

• Out of state permits 

• Horse issues  

• Open Markets 

• Brand Transfers 

• Divorce/Division of assets. 

• Banks – sales records/ proof of ownership. 

 



3 
 

 



 
 

AREA INVESTIGATORS QUARTERLY/ YEARLY ACTIVITY REPORT 
QUARTER: 4  MONTH: June of 2021 FISCAL YEAR: July 2020 – June 2021 

 AREA: III  INVESTIGATORS NAME:      C.Fell 
 
 
 
 
INVESTIGATOR OVERVIEW: 
 
The fourth quarter has continued to be busy with calls for assistance and possible cases as well as 
working on follow up and investigations on past cases. 
 
 
TOTAL # OF INVESTIGATIONS/ THEFT/ ASSOCIATED CRIMES, ACTIVE/ CLEARED 
OR UNFOUNDED: 12 new case’s this quarter and a total of 34 new case’s so far this 
fiscal year. 
 
 
CASE#                VIOLATION:             COUNTY:    DISPOSITION: 
  
040121CF3  Neglect   Hayes/Hitchcock     

041521Cf3a  Suspicious/theft  McPherson 

041521CF3b  No brand inspections  Gospher/Buffalo 

042221CF3a  AOA Wyo missing Horses Unknown 

042221CF3b  AOA Trespassing L/S  Adams 

050721CF3  Neglect   Lincoln    Unfounded 

051021CF3  AOA Yuma CO Fugitive Yuma Colorado 

051321CF3-IA  Employee   Dawson   Submitted to HR 

051821CF3  NBC Hold Assist  Dawson 

052510CF3  NBC Hold Assist  Red willow   Owner Found 

052821CF3  Neglect   Lincoln    Unfounded 

052921CF3  Neglect/Abandonment Hayes 

 

 



COURT CASES PENDING: 02 

DATE:          VIOLATION:    COUNTY:        DISPOSITION: 
021820CF3  Felony Prohibited sale of L/S  Clay County.                      Charges Filed 

030420CF3 Felony Selling to avoid Lien  Adams County.                     Summons Issued   

 

WARNING TICKETS ISSUED: 00 

DATE:   ADDRESS:   COUNTY:   VIOLATION: 
 
 
TOTAL VIOLATIONS:      00 
 
VIOLATIONS HANDLED BY WRITTEN OR VERBAL WARNING:  00   
DATE:                ADDRESS:                 COUNTY:            VIOLATION: 
 
 
VIOLATION INSPECTIONS: 00 
 
 
VIOLATIONS TRANSFERRED TO OTHER STATES:  00 

 
VIOLATIONS PENDING ACTION:  01 
CASE#                VIOLATION:             COUNTY:    DISPOSITION: 
09/21/20  54-1,110   Dawson  Requires Vio. Inspection 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                              
TOTAL ESTRAY CASES:         06 
 
 
ESTRAY CASES SOLD BY THE NEBRASKA BRAND COMMITTEE:    06 
CASE#:    DATE RECEIVED:    SOLD AT:       HD. COUNT:                        DISPOSITION: 
5456  022820  McCook  1   Active 
5463  020320  N. Platte  2   Active 
5475  072020  Alma   1   Active 
5478  082520  N. Platte  1   Active 
5492  020121  N. Platte  1   Active 
5499  030121  Imperial  1   Active 
 
   
 
 
 



TRUCK CHECKS PERFORMED BY INVESTIGATOR:   07 
 
DATE:     Location #of Contacts #of Livestock #Written/Verbal #Inspections  
031821 Hitchcock County 2  90  0  0 
050521 Broadwater  2  157  0  0 
050621 Sidney   2  80  0  0 
051921 Shelton  1  2  0  0 
052021 Ravenna  1  2  0  0 
060121 Hay Springs  0  0  0  0 
060221 Valentine  4   
            
TOTAL# OF CLASSES OR PRESENTATIONS GIVEN:         00 
 
 
EMPLOYEE SUPERVISION 

Minimal, mostly answering questions about procedures when supervisors are not available or assisting 

with holds and Estray’s. 

 

PRODUCER ISSUES:       

Normal Producer Questions, 

Grazing Permits, Reviewed all grazing permits in my area        

Inspection Requirements,  

Health Requirements,     

Out of State Permits,      

Horse Issues,      

Open Markets,     

Brand Transfers,       

Divorce/ Division of Assets,       

Banks: Sale Records, Proof of Ownership. 

 

REGISTERED FEEDLOT AUDITS:       07 

Seven Feedlots to be audited in June. 

 



TECHNOLOGY & TRAINING:  

Nothing this quarter. 

 

PUBLIC RELATIONS & EDUCATION: 

None this quarter other than truck checks. 
 
 
INVESTIGATORS COMMENTS: 
 
The Fourth quarter has continued to be busy with new cases coming in, as well as leads on old cases and 
case follow-up.  
I continue to audit seven feedlots quarterly on the southern edge of the state.  
I continue to receive phone calls from producers with questions about inspection rules and grazing 
permits and continue to receive calls from producers and County Sheriff’s wanting assistance with 
possible cases. 
I currently have two felony cases submitted to County attorneys. 
  
 

INVESTIGATORS SIGNATURE:                    ___8903_________                                                                                           
 

 







 

 

 

South – Quarterly Report 
June 2021 

 

 

Employment 

• North Platte fulltime Inspector position filled – Started April 1  

• Lexington fulltime Inspector position open 

• Roberts Cattle – RFL doubling size … 20-24,000 head – already filling as pens 

are being completed 

• North Platte new Packing plant in the works 

 

Training 

• Continually working with inspectors in my area on the sale barn program and 

how to handle various situations that arise 

• Supervisor conference calls weekly 

• In-person Supervisor training sessions once a month 

• Nebraska Interactive conference calls and zoom meetings regularly  

• Have quarterly In-Charge training sessions 

• As new enhancements come out/or any testing needing done w Nebraska 

Interactive – I have been able to assist 

• Help build and make test questions for Inspector training test 

• Test on TimeKeeper – inputting data, test, documenting, submitting, screenshots 

of items not working, notes about what occurred – this is a time consuming 

project especially when what is given out reverts back to old items already tested 

and were working at one point 

• Completed EDC Training sessions – those were beneficial  

 

Visits / Inspections 

• Visited Lexington, North Platte, Alma, Imperial, and McCook sale barns 

• Completed Registered Feedlot Audits – on schedule 

• Still ‘dispatching’ locals – across entire area at times, have had no issue 

• Have received several calls that required more in Investigative work – forwarded 

to Inv Fell  



 

 

• South area workload has been steady – Tri-State (McCook) still has sale every 

week – all other barns every other 

• Worked some production sales – set up an invoice account, cleaned up past 

owed fees 

• Working w Inspectors to keep the Pending Cash payment list to a minimal 

 

Personnel 

• Email inspectors to keep them informed  

• Continually answering calls 

• Assist with clearing Holds and Pending Payments 

• Deal with personnel issues  

• Reviewing/approving expense vouchers and Vacation requests 

• Work together with the other Dist. Supervisors to best serve the Brand Area 

• Answer calls/questions from inspectors within each of the areas 

• Keeping comp time hours to reasonable amount / using time as they can 

• TimeKeeper has proven its value in helping keep the inspectors honest 

 
 
 

Kortnie Shafer 
South District Supervisor / Asst IT Corrdinator 

Nebraska Brand Committee 

   



West Area Quarterly Report 

West Area Supervisor Cody Waite 

June 15, 2021 

 

 

Employment 

• Hired a new inspector for Bridgeport (May 2021) 

• Inspector in Charge in Scottsbluff is planning to retired at the end of July 2021. This 

inspector has provided 50 years of service to the Nebraska Brand Committee. 

• Moved inspector of 25 years in Scottsbluff to the inspector in charge position due to 

retirement. 

• Have a brand inspector position open in Scottsbluff 

• Inspector in Ogallala is planning to resign June 18th 2021. Currently have this position 

open. 

Training 

• Spent a week in Bridgeport training new inspector 

• Went to Thedford for an inspector in charge quarterly training 

• Continually working with inspectors in my area on the sale barn program and how to 

handle various situations that arise. 

• Went to two supervisor trainings in Paxton and at IT coordinator’s house. 

 

 

Visits / Inspections 

• On March 24, 2021 I had the opportunity to conduct a presentation to two 4th grade 

classes in Morrill on branding cattle and the Nebraska Brand Committee. 

• Visited Ogallala barn 3 time this quarter 

• Visited Alliance, Gordon, Rushville, and/or Crawford sale barns 6 times this quarter 

• Helped cover the Scottsbluff and Bridgeport areas and completed 32 inspections 

• Helped at Ogallala, Crawford, Rushville, and Platte Valley Livestock during sale days 

• Worked with producers, staff, and sale barns to clear up various holds. 

• Completed 22 RFL audits 

• Set up new RFL at Chappell Feedlot 

• Cover a production sale in the Bridgeport area 



 

 

Personnel 

• I had to do a lot of scheduling this quarter due to no inspector in Bridgeport and other 

areas. 

• Completed two different interview process during this quarter. 

• I email my inspectors every two weeks to keep them informed of issues, training, and 

my schedule for upcoming week 

• Continually answering phone calls from inspectors and producers 

• Working closely with HR manage, Chief Investigator, IT coordinator, and other area 

supervisors to better serve the Brand Committee 

• Continually reviewing weekly time sheet/expense vouchers for full time inspectors 

• Continually working with Alliance Office staff on clearing up holds, payments for On The 

Go system, time sheets, and personnel issues as needed 

• Working with inspectors to clean up OtG payments that where returned 

 

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at any time. Thanks 

 

Cody Waite 

Area II Supervisor 

(308) 562-0148 



 

June 2021 

Quarterly Report – East 
RFL’S 
 
  All of my registered lots are caught up and have had no issues. 

Meetings, Training and Interviews 
 
  March 22- I hosted the in-charge meeting at Thedford and had some positive feedback 
and thought it went well. 
   
     April 22- Monte Seever, McKenzie Kelley and I along with Dave and Becki interviewed 
Timothy Mendick for a training inspector position in Kearney. Tim had military training 
during the planned date for interviews. 
 
    April 29- We had a supervisor training with Dave Horton in Paxton,NE and went over 
different scenarios that we come across and how we would handle each. It was 
interesting to see how different areas deal with different issues and got everyone’s 
opinions on how to handle each situation. I thought it was a good training with all of us 
walking away with more insight to the different areas. 
 
    May 6- Monte Seever, McKenzie Kelley and I along with Dave and Becki interviewed 3 
applicants for the Kearney inspector position with 1 no show. It was decided that with the 
comp-time issues in Kearney we could utilize 2 inspectors there and give a much needed 
break to inspectors who need to burn off some time. Are top 2 picks Tim Mendick and 
Cody Luhn were notified they would start June 1st. 
 
     May 18- Was called by investigator Deibler that Amy Sibley needed help at the Bossen 
Ranch/ Feed-yard on an inspection requested by Custer County. This was on some cattle 
the Custer County Sheriff’s Department had confiscated for neglect. Assisted Amy with 
this inspection and things went smoothly. 
 
     May 20-  We had a supervisor IT training at Danna’s and had a conference call with 
Nebraska Interactive to see what they are currently working on for us.  We went over the 
6 month test and did some re-wording and revised some questions. It was very 
informative and a great meeting with more information than I can possibly retain in one 
sitting. Thank You Danna and Kortnie for the great lunch. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Shawn Hanks 
East Area District Supervisor 
Nebraska Brand Committee 
shawn.hanks@nebraska.gov 



 

June 1- I met with Cody and Tim at the Kearney brand office and got there information to 
Becki so we can get them in the system as new staff.  We went over the power point and 
distributed there supplies and put them to work at Huss Livestock. We also had opened 
the Kearney in-charge position as Monte Seevers stepped down as the in-charge  
inspector as he has signed his paperwork for his retirement at the end of August.  Ashlin 
Bussell and McKenzie Kelley were are 2 applicants. We went ahead and had interviews 
with these 2 really good applicants. Kortnie assisted me along with Dave with the 
interview and test. Both applicants done very well and it was a close one as I expected. 
McKenzie was chosen to take over as in-charge at Kearney. Congrats to Tim, Cody and 
McKenzie on their accomplishments and a big thank you to Monte for his years of 
dedication and hard work that he has done for the Brand Committee.  
 

General 
 
    I’ve been answering phone calls from producers and inspectors daily and trying to 
make it to packing plants and sale-barns in my area as time allows. 
 
 
 
 
    



North District Supervisor Quarterly Report 

 Kayla Jesse 

 RFLs 

 RFLs, continue to be caught up and on track with the scheduled Audits. 

Monthly Audits at Adams Land and Livestock 

Have had a discussion with an RFL that wasn’t wanting to follow rules very well, but after a 

stern yet gentle conversation all is well, and I will keep monitoring to be sure. 

 

 Personal Changes  

Dean Rice is now full time in the Mullen/Thedford area and is doing a great job. Chassidty 

Krueger was kept up in the Sparks/Ainsworth area, she has been doing a great job keeping 

things rolling for both Valentine and Bassett barns and everything in-between. I still have a open 

intermittent spot for the valentine and west area, and may fill that at some point if the right 

person comes along 

   

Day to Day .  

Helping the inspectors keep an eye on their comp time hrs, and moving people around where 

needed. 

Have had many calls and questions from not only the inspectors but from producers asking 

about laws and movement of cattle, keeping my inspectors educated and refreshed on these 

issues has helped a ton. 

With the legislation news, I have spoken to many producers curious about the changes coming. 

No true heart burn yet, some very excited producers looking forward to the E inspection for 

individually ID’d cattle 

 

I seriously can’t be more proud of my area and the people I work with, we are definitely a team 

and it shows by how smoothly things are going. 

 

Meetings and training 

In person supervisor meetings have been really good, I feel we are getting lots of good 

communication with in our team and accomplishing some goals. 



  4th Quarter Inspector in Charge meeting is next Thursday here in Valentine, hope to have a 

good turn out and and I invite any of you board members to come and listen in, it gives a more 

one on one experience with the men and women who are helping us keep this agency afloat. 

We will be going over scenarios, and we tend to get lots of good discussion and questions and 

all leave learning something new. 

Working on employee yearly reviews and tests 

*visiting Sale Barns and inspectors * keeping an eye on inspectors hrs and mileage vouchers * 

taking phone calls for help with IT issues and other employee questions 



CHIEF INVESTIGATOR / CHIEF of FIELD OPERATIONS 

QUARTERLY REPORT 

For  

June 15, 2021 

Dave Horton 

 

Assist Executive Director with planning, personnel matters, scheduling, setting up meetings, 

answering questions.  

Participate in Leadership and Supervisor Conference Calls and Legislative Task Force Meetings.  

Receive calls from producers, inspectors, investigators, answering questions, personnel 

questions, scheduling, research and records checks.  

Assist Office Staff on state reports, office updates, inspection, and procedural questions.  

Participate in new hire interviews.  

Work with other states investigators, office and field staff RE: investigations, brand holds, 

transportation matters and other issues, states involved: South Dakota, Wyoming, Colorado, 

Kansas.  

Complete RFL checks in Phelps County and assist in Custer and Kearney Counties.  

Attend Nebraska Sheriff’s Convention with Investigators to meet continuing education 

mandates. Participate in firearms qualification and training with Investigators. Also assist with 

some truck checks. 

Complete and submit required NCJIS reports.   

 

   


	1 Agenda  June 15, 2021
	1 NBC Meeting Open Meetings Statement June 15, 2021
	2a Minutes March 2021
	2b Minutes June 4 Special Meeting
	3a Monthly Income Statement March 21
	3b Monthly Income Statement April
	3c Monthly Income Statement May 21
	3d March 2021 Budget Status
	3e April 2021 Budget Status
	3f May 2021 Budget  Status Report
	3g March 2021 Fund By Fund
	3h April 2021 Fund By Fund
	3i May 2021 Fund By Fund
	3j Fund Equity Balances
	5a Reciprocal Agreement with South Dakota
	5b SD Agreement email
	6a Employee Ratification June 2021 meeting
	6b Monthly Employee Counts
	8 Nebraska Brand Strategic Plan (Dec 2019)
	9 Fee Schedule
	10 6-15-2021 NBC Board Meeting Notice
	12 Technology Report March 2021
	13a Investigator Area II quarterly report June 2021
	13b Investigator Area III Quarterly Report June 2021
	13c Investigator Area IV Quarterly Report June 2021
	15a Supervisor South Quarterly Report June 2021
	15b Supervisor West Quarterly Report June 2021
	15c Supervisor East Quarterly Report June 2021
	15d Supervisor North Quarterly Report June 2021
	16 Chief Investigator Quarterly Report June 2021



